
 
 
 

Minutes 
2010 Sunshine Census Complete Count Committee 

Full Committee Conference Call 
September 18, 2009 
1:00 p.m. - 3:00 p.m. 

Conference Call: (888) 808-6959 
Conference code: 7517473 

 
Statewide Complete Count Committee Members on Conference Call: 
 
Mayor Richard Crotty of Orange County COMMITTEE CHAIR 
Alexis Tibbetts, Florida Association of District School Superintendents 
Carol Westmoreland, representing President Carmine Priore, Florida League of Cities 
Courtney Heidelberg, Florida Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles 
Dan Krassner, Florida Chamber of Commerce 
5ƛŀƴŜ aŎ/ŀƛƴΣ CƭƻǊƛŘŀ .ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ {ǘŀǘŜ ¦ƴƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ {ȅǎǘŜƳ 
Emmanuel Ridgeway, representing Patrick Franklin, Urban League of Palm Beach County 
Guylene Berry, Community Advisor to the City of Miami 
WƻŜ vǳŜǘƻƴŜΣ CƭƻǊƛŘŀ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭ ƻƴ LƴŘƛŀƴ !ŦŦŀƛǊǎ 
Kathy Thrumston, Florida Parent and Teacher Association 
Lance Lozano, Florida United Businesses Association 
Leilani Fontanilla, Filipino-American Organizations in Central Florida 
Linda Grisham, Florida Department of Education Adult Migrant Program and Services 
Lois Herron, AARP 
Maria Pinzon, Hispanic Services Council 
Mary Oakley, Florida Department of Elder Affairs 
Mayor Pegeen Hanrahan, League of Mayors 
Michele Taylor, Florida Catholic Conference 
Pat Roberts, Florida Association of Broadcasters 
Rana Brown, representing Ron Book, Florida Regional Planning Councils 
{Ŏƻǘǘ ±ŀƴ5ŜƳŀƴΣ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ /ƻƳƳƛǎǎƛƻƴ ƻƴ ±ƻƭǳƴǘŜŜǊƛǎƳ 
Steve Murray, Florida Department of Veterans Affairs 
Vesselka McAlarney, representing Rebecca Rust, Florida Agency for Workforce 
Innovation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
Statewide Complete Count Committee Legislative Delegates on Conference Call: 
 
Representative Hazelle Rogers, District 94 
 
Legislative Members not Delegates to the Statewide Complete Count Committee on 
Conference Call: 
 
Representative Gwen Clark-Reed, District 92 
 
DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ нлмл {ǳƴǎƘƛƴŜ /Ŝƴǎǳǎ {ǘŀŦŦ on Conference Call: 
 
Ayla Anderson, Government Analyst, 2010 Sunshine Census Initiative 
/ƭȅŘŜ 5ƛŀƻΣ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ [ƛŀƛǎƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ нлмл /Ŝƴǎǳǎ 
Bob Sparks, Executive Deputy Chief of Staff 
 
U.S. Census Bureau Staff on Conference Call: 
 
Marilyn Stephens, Partnership Coordinator, Team Leader 
 
Other Persons on the Conference Call: 
 
Ammal Elhaddad, South Florida Economic Foundation 
John Guthrie, Florida Senate Committee on Reapportionment, Staff Director 
Mario Ordona, Council for Filipino American Organizations 
 
 
The conference call started at 1:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Ayla Anderson ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ŀƴ ǳǇŘŀǘŜ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ hŦŦƛŎŜΦ {ƘŜ ǎŀƛŘ ǘƘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ 
2010 Sunshine Census Web site, Census in Schools page 
http://www.sunshinecensus2010.com/censusInSchools.aspx, now has the lesson plans, 
K-12 posted. She also said the solicitation of the 2010 Sunshine Census public awareness 
campaign was in the final stages of preparation. 
 
Chairman Richard Crotty thanked everyone for attending the call and all the effort being 
put forth for the upcoming 2010 Census. 
 
Dan Krassner updated the committee of the Florida ChamōŜǊΩǎ ŀŎǘƛƻƴǎ ǎƛƴŎŜ ǘƘŜ !ǳƎǳǎǘ 
24 business subcommittee meeting. He has reached out to the 300 local chambers and 
economic development organizations. Many of these chambers and organizations are 
planning to become a partner will the U.S. Census Bureau. He also stated that he is 
ōǊŀƛƴǎǘƻǊƳƛƴƎ ƛŘŜŀǎΣ ŦƻǊ ǿƘŜƴ ǘƘŜ /ƘŀƳōŜǊǎ ŀƴŘ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎŜǎ ƳƻǾŜ ƛƴǘƻ άƻǳǘǊŜŀŎƘέ 
mode. 
 
Representative Gwen Clarke- Reed asked Dan Krassner if there is any contact with the 
chambers other than the 300 on his list. She said it would be helpful to know which 
chambers on the local level need to be contacted.  
 
Dan Krassner said he will work with Ayla Anderson to create and disseminate a 
comprehensive list of the local chambers to community leaders in order to create 
outreach among the chambers who are not receiving the 2010 Sunshine Census 
message. 
 
Leilani Fontanilla spoke about what the Filipino-Organizations of Central Florida have 
been doing since the July 30 Statewide Complete Count Committee meeting. Through 
outreach, they have obtained ten partners to sign up with the U.S. Census Bureau. Two 
of these partners have television stations that reach out to the Filipino population and 
the Vietnamese population. One of the other partners has a Vietnamese radio station. 
These partners plan on creating awareness of the census through their media outlets. 
She also said that her organization continues to actively recruit partners. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sunshinecensus2010.com/censusInSchools.aspx


 
 
 
 
 
Lois Herron asked if the U.S. Census Bureau is still accepting partnerships agreement 
forms. 
 
Ayla Anderson confirmed that the U.S. Census Bureau is still accepting partnership 
forms. 
 
Leilani Fontanilla mentioned that the hospitals in Central Florida should be contacted to 
become partners with U.S. Census Bureau. She committed to contact them. 
 
Lois Herron asked what the benefits were to becoming a partner. 
 
Ayla Anderson said that becoming a partner will allow your organization to obtain 
ǇǊƛƴǘŜŘ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭǎΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ŀǊŜ ƭƻŎŀǘŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ /Ŝƴǎǳǎ .ǳǊŜŀǳΩǎ ²Ŝō ǎƛǘŜΣ 
www.census.gov, as wŜƭƭ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǳǎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ /Ŝƴǎǳǎ .ǳǊŜŀǳΩǎ ƭƻƎƻ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ǘƻ 
apply for the Partnership Support Program. If AARP Florida decides to become an official 
partner, they can choose their level of involvement by selecting the appropriate boxes 
of activities and outreach on the partnership agreement form. 
 
Representative Gwen Clarke-Reed said that she has not seen the partnership agreement 
form yet and inquired on how to obtain it. 
 
Ayla Anderson explained that ǘƘŜ ŦƻǊƳ ƛǎ ƭƻŎŀǘŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ ²Ŝō ǎƛǘŜΣ 
www.SunshineCensus2010.comΣ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ άDŜǘ LƴǾƻƭǾŜŘέ ǇŀƎŜΦ 
 
Joe Quetone ǎǇƻƪŜ ŀōƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ Ƙƻǿ ǘƘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭ ƻƴ LƴŘƛŀƴ !ŦŦŀƛǊǎ Ƙŀǎ 
developed promotional materials, such as stickers for mailings and informational 
inserts. Joe also added that the leaders of the Miccosukee and Seminole tribes have 
shown significant interest in achieving an accurate count of their tribe members in 
Florida. He stated that even though the leadership knows how important an accurate 
count is in 2010, the individuals are still hesitant to fill out their forms. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.census.gov/
http://www.sunshinecensus2010.com/


 
 
 
 
 
Maria Pinzon stated that on September 14, the Hillsborough County Complete Count 
Committee had their kick-off. They have received Partnership Support Program funds to 
cover the cost of the Hillsborough County Complete Count Committee official banner. 
 
Alexis Tibbetts said that she has been busy getting the Partnership Support Program 
information to all the districts. 
 
Mario Ordona asked if the Census in Schools program was only for public schools and if 
it were appropriate for him to approach private schools located in Central Florida. He is 
involved with a number of private schools and wants to ensure the Census in Schools 
program is incorporated into their curriculum.  
 
Ayla Anderson indicated that it is appropriate for private schools to use the Census in 
Schools materials.  She explained that lesson plans are available ƻƴ ǘƘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ 2010 
Sunshine Census Web site, Census in Schools page. 
 
Diane McCain added that reaching out to the CHOICE office of the Department of 
Education would be great way to implement the Census in Schools program among the 
non-public schools. 
 
Ammal Elhaddad said in South Florida, she is using advisory boards to reach out to the 
hard-to-count populations. 
 
Representative Hazelle Rogers stated that the second round of Partnership Support 
Program funds will be available on Oct. 2. (**Marilyn Stephen is scheduled to speak on 
this topic later.) 
 
Hulbert James said that he observed census messages at the Hollywood/Fort Lauderdale 
ŀƛǊǇƻǊǘΩǎ ƳŜǎǎŀƎŜ ǎŎǊŜŜƴǎΦ IŜ recommended that all the major airports in Florida look 
into doing something similar. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Linda Grisham said that the Adult Migrant Program in Hillsborough County is in the 
process of scheduling a time when the U.S. Census Bureau can educate the migrant 
liaisons, English as Second Language teachers and English Language Learners teachers 
on the 2010 Census. She also stated that the Adult Migrant Service of Hillsborough 
County has formed a community complete count committee. The bulk of their census 
outreach will be between November 2009 and February 2010. 
 
Michele Taylor said that the Florida Catholic Conference has officially partnered with the 
U.S. Census Bureau and is encouraging local dioceses and churches to do the same. She 
has an opportunity to speak to the Florida Faith-based and Community-based Advisory 
Council and will encourage other faiths to become involved in census outreach. She said 
she has also provided Census in Schools information to the Catholic Accreditation Office. 
 
Mary Oakley said she is attempting to recruit partners outside of the Department of 
Elder Affairs, as well as internally.  
 
Carol Westmoreland said the League of Cities is proceeding with an intense hands-on 
training, such as a Webinar, with their members. The hands-on training will commence 
after October 1. 
 
Representative Gwen Clarke-Reed inquired if the Department of Elder Affairs was 
looking into outreach materials with larger print for the elderly. 
 
Mary Oakley indicated that large print is one of the plans for customized materials. 
 
Vesselka McAlarney wanted to draw the Statewide Complete Count Committee 
ƳŜƳōŜǊǎΩ ŀǘǘŜƴǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ Census 2000 Planning Database. The database is located on 
ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ /Ŝƴǎǳǎ .ǳǊŜŀǳΩǎ ²Ŝō ǎƛǘŜΣ 
http://2010.census.gov/2010census/more_information/012986.html and includes tract-
level planning data. This tool allows you look at the different variables that indicate 
hard-to-count areas and where these areas are located in Florida. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://2010.census.gov/2010census/more_information/012986.html


 
 
 
 
 
Marilyn Stephens pointed out that this data is very useful, but it is almost 10 years old. 
She explained that information from the state and local levels is very crucial to planning 
successful census outreach and monitoring. 
 
Marilyn Stephens spoke about the New Construction Program. She said the highest 
elected official of the counties and selected cities has already received a letter from the 
U.S. Census Bureau inviting them to sign up for the New Construction Program. The New 
Construction Program allows cities and counties to submit addresses of newly built 
households that are complete by April 1, 2010, Census Day. If households were closed 
off by weather elements during address canvassing, they were not included in the U.S. 
/Ŝƴǎǳǎ .ǳǊŜŀǳΩǎ ŀŘŘǊŜǎǎ ŘŀǘŀōŀǎŜΦ LŦ ǘƘŜ ŀŘŘǊŜǎǎŜǎ ŀǊŜ ƴƻǘ ŀŘŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŘŀǘŀōŀǎŜΣ ǘƘŜƴ 
they will not be included in the 2010 Census. The deadline for local governments to sign-
up for this program is October 8, 2009. 
 
Vesselka McAlarney added that once local governments are signed up for the New 
Construction Program, they will receive a letter with instructions on how, when and 
where to send the list of new construction addresses. 
 
Representative Gwen Clarke-Reed asked the GoveǊƴƻǊΩǎ hŦŦƛŎŜ about the status of the 
2010 Sunshine Census public awareness campaign solicitation. 
 
Ayla Anderson said the solicitation document is being prepared. Once the solicitation 
document is posted on the online Vendor Bid SystemΣ ǘƘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƻǊΩǎ hŦŦice plans to 
inform the Legislature and the 2010 Sunshine Census Statewide Complete Count 
Committee. 
 
Marilyn Stephens spoke about the Partnership Support Program. She said that the 
second round of funds will be available October 1; however, she also indicated that 
there is a backlog of applications. She recommended that all members submit their 
forms as soon as possible, for the greatest chance of receiving Partnership Support 
Program funds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Representative Gwen Clarke-Reed asked if the faith-based groups on the Statewide 
Complete Count Committee were coordinating with other faith groups, particularly on 
the local level.  
 
Michele Taylor said she plans to reach out to other faiths at the Florida Faith-based and 
Community-based Advisory Council. 
 
Hulbert James said coordination of outreach to the faith-based groups is more effective 
if done on the local level because of the expertise of the community.  
 
Marilyn Stephens spoke about the materials and resources available from the U.S. 
Census Bureau. She stated that the Partnership Specialists around the state are running 
ƭƻǿ ƻƴ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭǎΦ {ƘŜ ǇƻƛƴǘŜŘ ƻǳǘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ /Ŝƴǎǳǎ .ǳǊŜŀǳΩǎ ²Ŝō ǎƛǘŜ Ƙŀǎ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭǎ 
available in several languages in PDF files. 
 
Marilyn Stephens then spoke about job opportunities with the U.S. Census Bureau. She 
explained that targeted recruiting will begin in mid-November. She emphasized that this 
will not be a mass recruiting effort as was done before. Targeted recruiting will be for 
certain tracts that have not met their recruiting goal.  
 
Guylene Berry asked if there will be specific recruiting for the Haitian population. 
 
Marilyn Stephens said they are hiring from the tract level up. This means that if there 
are tracts where the recruiting goal has not been met, and the tract has a large Haitian 
population, then it is very likely that a Haitian person will be hired for that position. 
 
Joe Quetone asked if there were any special forms for the visually impaired. 
 
Marilyn Stephens said Braille questionnaires can be requested. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Dan Krassner said he was pleased to see that the U.S. Census Bureau has disassociated 
itself with the group called ACORN. He wants to make sure that the Statewide Complete 
Count Committee is not associated with that group as well. 
 
Ayla Anderson said the 2010 Sunshine Census Initiative and the 2010 Sunshine Census 
Statewide Complete Count Committee does not have any partnerships or relationships 
with ACORN. 
 
Marilyn Stephens said that in an upcoming regional newsletter, Florida is being 
recognized for the great work being done on 2010 Census public awareness. 
 
Mayor Pegeen Hanrahan stated how important and helpful it would be if the League of 
Mayors, as well as other local government groups, could receive a list of local complete 
count committees already formed. 
 
Marilyn Stephens said they were working on the list and should have it ready soon. 
 
The meeting ended at approximately 2:50 p.m. 
 
     


